
The City of Durant encourages participation from all its citizens. If participation at any public meeting is 
not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting is encouraged in order to make the necessary accommodations. The City of Durant may waive 
the 48-hour rule if interpreters for the deaf (signing) or translation services for limited English proficient 

(LEP) individuals are not the necessary accommodation. 
  

DURANT INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY 
   
4:00 PM Roscoe J. Hatfield 

Council Chambers, 
300 West Evergreen, 

Durant, Oklahoma 

June 6, 2023 

 AGENDA  
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE 
ROLL CALL 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
1.  Consent Items 
   To help streamline meetings and allow the focus to be on other items requiring strategic thought, 

the "Consent Items" portion of the agenda groups the routine, procedural, and self-explanatory non-
controversial items together. These items are voted on in a single motion (one vote). However, any 
Council member requesting further information on a specific item thus removes it from the "Consent 
Items" section for individual attention and separate vote. 

  a. Consider Approval of May 2, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
  

2.  Consider Items Removed from Consent 
  

3.  Information Items 
  a. DIA Directors Report May 2023 
  b. DIA Financial Report May 2023 

  
4.  Administration 
  a. Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applications- 2K 
  b. Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applications-5K 

  
5.  Executive Session 

  
6.  New Business 

  

Page 1 of 145



ADJOURNMENT 
 

CERTIFICATE 
This is to certify that in conformity with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, public notice 
of the date, time and place of this meeting was filed with the City Clerk of Durant on the 
7th day of December, 2022 and that an agenda of said meeting was posted at the 
place of such meeting at  2:30 p.m. on the 2nd day of June , 2023. 
 

 
_______________________________________ 
Tamme Collins, City of Durant 
 

Page 2 of 145



  

 Agenda Item: 1.a. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 6/6/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Tamme Collins, Administrative Assistant 
Re: Consider Approval of May 2, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. DIA 05.02.2023 Agenda Minutes (1) 
 
 

Page 3 of 145



 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DURANT INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY 
May 2, 2023 AT 4:00 PM, Roscoe J. Hatfield 
Council Chambers, 
300 West Evergreen, 
Durant, Oklahoma 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Chairman Hammock called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  
  
INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE  
Chairman Jeff Hammock provided the invocation.  
  
ROLL CALL  
Present: 
Trustee Mike Davis 
Trustee Grace Rudolf 
Trustee Jeff Shattuck 
Vice Chairman Brett Rogers 
Chairman Jeff Hammock 
Advisory Member Tammye Gwin 
 
*Advisory Member Thomas Newsom Joined at 4:30 pm 
 
Absent: 
Trustee Cole Walker  
  
ORDER OF BUSINESS 
   
1.  Consent Items 
   To help streamline meetings and allow the focus to be on other items requiring strategic thought, 

the "Consent Items" portion of the agenda groups the routine, procedural, and self-explanatory non-
controversial items together. These items are voted on in a single motion (one vote). However, any 
Council member requesting further information on a specific item thus removes it from the "Consent 
Items" section for individual attention and separate vote.   

  a. Consider Approval of April 4, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
   

Motion was made by Vice Chairman Brett Rogers and seconded by Trustee Grace 
Rudolf to approve the April 4, 2023 Meeting Minutes. 
 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 

Page 4 of 145



 
Ayes: Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck,Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
2.  Consider Items Removed from Consent 

    
3.  Information Items   
  a. DIA Directors Report April 2023  
Directors report was presented by Nichole Tucker 
  
  b. DIA Financial Report April 2023 

   
DIA Financial Report was presented by Trustee Jeff Shattuck.  
  
4.  Administration   
  a. Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applications    
Motion was made by Trustee Jeff Shattuck and seconded by Trustee Grace Rudolf to 
approve the Small Business Grant Applications on the Agenda 
 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
  b. Consider Approval on Entering a Contract for 

Services with Heather Lisle in the amount of $2,000 
   

Motion was made by Vice Chairman Brett Rogers and seconded by Trustee Jeff 
Shattuck to approve entering a Contract for Services with Heather Lisle in the amount 
of $2000.00. 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
5.  Executive Session   
  a. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to 

Page 5 of 145



economic development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the 
creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate within their 
jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the 
development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the 
confidentiality of the business, specifically Project Stone. This Executive 
Session Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State 
Statutes. 
   

Motion was made by Trustee Mike Davis and seconded by Trustee Jeff Shattuck to 
enter the Executive Session. 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
 
Motion was made by Vice Chairman Brett Rogers and seconded by Trustee Grace 
Rudolf to enter back in session.  
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
  b. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. A 

   
Motion was made by Trustee Mike Davis and seconded by Vice Chairman Brett Rogers 
to move to approve the incentives package as presented in the Executive Session for 
Project Stone and of its terms & condition for the Director to pursue. 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
  c. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to 

economic development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the 
creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate within their 
jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the 
development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the 
confidentiality of the business, specifically Project 360. This Executive Session 
Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes. 

Page 6 of 145



    
  d. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. c 

   
Motion was made by Trustee Mike Davis and seconded by Vice Chairman Brett Rogers 
to move to authorize the Executive Director of the DIA to draft an incentive proposal 
reflecting conversation from executive session.  
  
6.  New Business 

   
Theresa Henser gave an announcement talking about Hobby Lobby.  She wants to 
bring in the chain store.  She would like the Industrial Authority to make a proposal. 
 She goes to Sherman and Ardmore to buy things from the Hobby Lobby. She would 
always spend around $100.00 on each trip. This could go to Durant. (sales tax) She 
handed out a Petition  for the Hobby Lobby Store to come to Durant. Over 200 people 
have signed the petition already.  Theresa said there is a need to have a store like that 
here in Durant. 
 
 
  
ADJOURNMENT  
Motion was made by Vice Chairman Brett Rogers and seconded by Trustee Grace 
Rudolf to Adjoun. 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 

 

Page 7 of 145



  

 Agenda Item: 3. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 6/6/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: 

 

Re: Information Items  
 

 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 

Page 8 of 145



  

 Agenda Item: 3.a. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 6/6/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Tamme Collins, Administrative Assistant 
Re: DIA Directors Report May 2023  

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. DIA Director Report May 2023 
 
 

Page 9 of 145



Memorandum 
Date:  
To: 
From:  

RE: 

June 6, 2023 
Council  
Nichole Tucker,  Director 

    Monthly Report  

Property Updates: 

• SW Pickling – Second Stage of clean up will begin, after a delay with EPA and DEQ. Three 
people interested in the site after it has been released. 

• Land Purchase Proposal- 20 acres- North Side of Country Club Drive Behind asphalt plant and 

21.86 acres- SW Corner of Country Club Drive and South McLean. Negotiations continue. 

Project Updates: 

• Project Lift – Conversations continue with Project Lift representatives.  Members of KSA 

provided a project proposal for possible Airport facility. Still waiting on a contract. 

• Small Business Boot camp-Boot camp has concluded. Nineteen local small business 

participated. Two participating business have submitted their application for the five 

thousand grant. Fourteen have already submitted Tech grants and been approved. 

• Project 360 – Project 360 is a locally owned and operated corporation expansion. Project 

360  has an owner investment of 1.5 million and will create 150-200 local jobs with annual 

wages at $7,085,000.

• Project Stone- Council approved DIA incentive package for Allied Stone, paperwork is 

being reviewed my legal council.  Allied Stone ground breaking should take place in thirty 

days. This project will create 150 new jobs with average salary $45,000  This project has a 

capital investment of 10 million and overall project investment of 28 million. 

•

 Other Activities: 

• Small Business- Four boot camp participants have turned Tech Grant applications.

• Retail Strategies-Retail Strategies and City of Durant began working with two local 
developers to work on large box store recruitment.

• Chick-Fil-A- Truck returned in Lowe's Parking lot May 18th. next visit has not 
been determined. 

Page 10 of 145



  

 Agenda Item: 3.b. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 6/6/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Nichole Tucker, Economic Development Director  
Re: DIA Financial Report May 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. April 2023 DIA & ED Financial Reports (1) 
 
 

Page 11 of 145



Page 12 of 145



Page 13 of 145



Page 14 of 145



Page 15 of 145



Page 16 of 145



Page 17 of 145



Page 18 of 145



Page 19 of 145



Page 20 of 145



Page 21 of 145



Page 22 of 145



Page 23 of 145



  

 Agenda Item: 4. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 6/6/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: 

 

Re: Administration  
 

 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 

Page 24 of 145



  

 Agenda Item: 4.a. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 6/6/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Tamme Collins, Administrative Assistant 
Re: Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applications- 2K  

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Amber Foster Durant Mercantile Grant 2000 
2. Wrights Drive In LLC 2000 
 
 

Page 25 of 145



Page 26 of 145



Page 27 of 145



Page 28 of 145



Page 29 of 145



Page 30 of 145



Page 31 of 145



Page 32 of 145



Page 33 of 145



Page 34 of 145



Page 35 of 145



Page 36 of 145



Page 37 of 145



Page 38 of 145



Page 39 of 145



Page 40 of 145



Page 41 of 145



Page 42 of 145



Page 43 of 145



Page 44 of 145



Page 45 of 145



Page 46 of 145



Page 47 of 145



Page 48 of 145



Page 49 of 145



Page 50 of 145



Page 51 of 145



Page 52 of 145



Page 53 of 145



Page 54 of 145



  

 Agenda Item: 4.b. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 6/6/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Tamme Collins, Administrative Assistant 
Re: Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applications-5K 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Amber Foster Durant Mercantile Grant 5000 
2. Blakes Coffee (1) 
3. Shear Maddness Grant 5000 
4. Wholesale Equipment 5000 
5. Parish  
 
 

Page 55 of 145



Page 56 of 145



Page 57 of 145



Page 58 of 145



Page 59 of 145



Page 60 of 145



Page 61 of 145



Page 62 of 145



Page 63 of 145



Page 64 of 145



Page 65 of 145



Page 66 of 145



Page 67 of 145



Page 68 of 145



Page 69 of 145



Page 70 of 145



Page 71 of 145



Page 72 of 145



Page 73 of 145



Page 74 of 145



Page 75 of 145



Page 76 of 145



Page 77 of 145



Page 78 of 145



Page 79 of 145



Page 80 of 145



Page 81 of 145



Page 82 of 145



Page 83 of 145



Page 84 of 145



Page 85 of 145



Page 86 of 145



Page 87 of 145



Page 88 of 145



Page 89 of 145



Page 90 of 145



Page 91 of 145



Page 92 of 145



Page 93 of 145



Page 94 of 145



Page 95 of 145



Page 96 of 145



Page 97 of 145



Page 98 of 145



Page 99 of 145



Page 100 of 145



Page 101 of 145



Page 102 of 145



Page 103 of 145



Page 104 of 145



Page 105 of 145



Page 106 of 145



Page 107 of 145



Page 108 of 145



Page 109 of 145



Page 110 of 145



Page 111 of 145



Page 112 of 145



Page 113 of 145



Page 114 of 145



Page 115 of 145



Page 116 of 145



Page 117 of 145



Page 118 of 145



Page 119 of 145



Page 120 of 145



Page 121 of 145



Page 122 of 145



Page 123 of 145



Page 124 of 145



Page 125 of 145



Page 126 of 145



Page 127 of 145



Page 128 of 145



Page 129 of 145



Page 130 of 145



Page 131 of 145



Page 132 of 145



Page 133 of 145



Page 134 of 145



Page 135 of 145



Page 136 of 145



Page 137 of 145



Page 138 of 145



Page 139 of 145



Page 140 of 145



Page 141 of 145



Page 142 of 145



Page 143 of 145



Page 144 of 145



Page 145 of 145


	 CALL TO ORDER
	 INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE
	 ROLL CALL
	 ORDER OF BUSINESS
	1. Consent Items
	a. Consider Approval of May 2, 2023 Meeting Minutes
	Memorandum
	DIA 05.02.2023 Agenda Minutes (1)


	2. Consider Items Removed from Consent
	3. Information Items
	Memorandum
	a. DIA Directors Report May 2023
	Memorandum
	DIA Director Report May 2023

	b. DIA Financial Report May 2023
	Memorandum
	April 2023 DIA & ED Financial Reports (1)


	4. Administration
	Memorandum
	a. Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applicat
	Memorandum
	Amber Foster Durant Mercantile Grant 2000
	Wrights Drive In LLC  2000

	b. Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applicat
	Memorandum
	Amber Foster Durant Mercantile Grant 5000
	Blakes Coffee (1)
	Shear Maddness Grant 5000
	Wholesale Equipment 5000
	Parish 


	5. Executive Session
	6. New Business

	 ADJOURNMENT



